RASHID KHAN A LEADING IKHWANI
Nazi war criminals had to go underground after the fall of Berlin. They vanish and fled to different countries to live anonymously till the Jewish (Nazi hunters) after sternness chase hounded them and took them to justice. In Kashmir, after the phenomenon of Ikhwan in mid 90’s dominated the conflict, hundreds of local Kashmiri militants, criminals and lampoon were recruited in different groups of Ikhwan (counter insurgency group) for carrying out the dirty job of the army i.e. terrorizing locals, identifying the active sympathizers of the resistance and finally elimination of these people. CCS has compiled a list of over 400 Ikhwanis mostly from the north Kashmir where Ikhwanis have out-terrorize the army and police. They had become law unto themselves and behaved like warlords holding their territories under the protection of their mentors who have outsource them. Driven by greed, extortion and lust, they had paralyzed the police administration. Some of these front rank leaders of Ikhwanis got killed and some ended up in the legislatures and mainstream political parties, but most of the second rank Ikhwanis are anonymously living peacefully in their areas. 
One of the Ikhwanis Rashid Khan of Chalgund, Kupwara, now in his 60’s, is living a normal life though the people in Kupwara are well-aware about his crimes and has a count of hundreds of killings by him. One night he killed twenty persons mostly the right wing Jamaat activists. The CCS after re-opening the case of Rashid Billa, a notorious Ikhwan, from Hajin, who is now absconding, is approaching the victims of Rashid Khan and persuading them for reopening / re-investigating the cases of their victims slain by Rashid Khan. 
The CCS visited Peer Mohalla where Abdul Aziz Peer, a ZEO, was killed on January 29, 1996, a lawyer and public prosecutor at Kupwara, Abdul Rashid Shah of Chak Dragmulla was killed on  22nd  November 1995, Gaffar  Chalkoo of Mukaam Shah Gund was killed on 5th January 1996,  Abdul Rashid Reshi a police constable of Manzhar was abducted on 9th September 1995 and killed, Bashir Ahmad Khan, a driver, and Ghulam Mohammad Khan of Gondsana were abducted and later subjected to disappearance in September 1995, Mufti Jalal Din Malik of Mukaami Shah Wali was abducted in 1995 and disappeared, Abdul Aziz Sofi, tailor of Sheerpora Hyhama was shot dead and a govt. teacher Altaf Ali Khan of Babapora was abducted on  28th  January 1996 and was killed next day. These cases are just a tip of an iceberg and there are scores of killings committed by him. The police had refused to file FIR against him, instead, had attributed the killing to the militants. Only in three FIRs, collected so far, Rashid Khan’s name exists. Rashid Khan is moving freely and the victims of his terrors lack audacity to question him, as his fear is still deep seated in their sub-conscience. 
CCS managed to conduct an interview of him. Rashid Khan, dressed in Afghan attire, supporting white beard, looked confident without having any remorse over the crimes he had committed against his own people. On the contrary, he was challenging that no one in the area has leveled any allegation of excesses against him. Further adding to one victim that “Jung mai ye hota hai” these thing do happen in war. Still getting proud of getting 900 militants surrendered and doing for India what the army would not have achieved in 100 years. 
The most pity thing was the Jammat-e-Islami, the main target of the Ikhwanis, has capitulated. The organization neither has made any endeavor to document the horrendous crimes perpetrated by Ikhawani Rashid Khan and others, nor it have tried to re-open the cases of its cadres’ extra judicial executions. After hard persuasion some of the families have agreed to approach the Court for re-investigation. Some of the people questioning the legal recourse and dismissing it as a useless exercise but whatever is available in a system has to be used against the system. We have three examples one of Major Avtar Singh, the other of Papa Kishtawari and the fresh one of Rashid Billa, who now disowned by the political party he had loyalties with. Rashid Billa is evading the police after the victim Ghulam Qadir Dar filed a petition in the High Court. Rashid Khan’s normal life is a shame for the civil society and he could be a shining inspiration for the other Ikhwanis claiming that they have got away with everything. As goes the saying that all is necessary for evil to succeed is that good man doing nothing even victims couldn’t understand the action of silence. Under this circumstance it is the civil society to hunt, probe, re-investigate the matters and at least put them in the dock of moral court for moral indictment.        


 “STRUCTURES OF VIOLENCE…”
POST REPORT CAMPAIGN 

The Informative Missive 	20 	October 2015

Jammu Kashmir Coalition of Civil Society (JKCCS) after releasing its report “Structures of Violence: The Indian State in Jammu and Kashmir” in September embarked on a campaign to lobby with different foreign governments and civil society groups. In this connection a two member delegation of JKCCS Khurram Parvez and Kartik Murukutla besides visiting Geneva, Switzerland in September visited Islamabad, Pakistan on 12th October. This was the first such exercise by the JKCCS after releasing a report.
 (
KARTIK MURUKUTLA DETAINED
On 18 October 2015, JKCCS researcher/lawyer Kartik Murukutla was detained on his return from Pakistan at the Wagah border by Indian Customs, and intelligence officials interrogated him. The re-printed copy of the report “Structures of Violence: The Indian State in Jammu and Kashmir” reprinted in Pakistan was impounded and fine of Rs. 5,000 was imposed for importing a questionable report. 
) 	On 14th and 15th October, the “Structures of Violence…” report was presented in a closed door meeting with the two factions of the All Parties Hurriyat Conference. In addition to the findings of the report, JKCCS representatives sought the assistance of the Hurriyat Conference on lobbying for the single demand that the UN Human Rights Council institute a Special Procedure for Jammu and Kashmir. A copy of the report was formally presented. Both factions of the Hurriyat Conference appeared genuinely interested in the report and the outcome being sought. This meeting was important as it would be upto the Hurriyat to also use the content of the report to persuade Pakistani and international diplomats to engage with the human rights issues highlighted in the report.
 	On 15th October, JKCCS representatives were invited to share the findings of the report to a select gathering of diplomats, academics, and students, by Conciliation Resources, an international non-governmental organization. This meeting was useful as there was some professors of universities and an ex-Pakistani diplomat in the audience. Once again the evolution of the work and the emphasis on international law was appreciated by the audience.
[bookmark: _GoBack] 	On 16th October, JKCCS representatives had two separate meetings where the report was formally presented and support on the demand for a Special Procedure for Jammu and Kashmir was requested. The meetings were with Director General [South Asia] of the Pakistan Foreign Office, Dr. Mohammad Faisal, and Senator Raja Mohammad Zaffar ul Haq, Chairperson Pakistan Muslim League, General Secretary World Muslim Congress, Leader of the House in Pakistan Senate. Dr. Mohammad Faisal assured his support on the report and Mr. Zaffar ul Haq assured his support to take up this report before Pakistan parliament, OIC and the United Nations.
 	In addition to the above formal meetings on 16th October, JKCCS representatives also met and held a workshop on human rights documentation with a partner group from AFAD, Defence of Human Rights, headed by Amina Masooda Janjua. Defence of Human Rights members were all very committed, organized and interested in learning from the Kashmir human rights documentation and litigation experience.
 	On 17th October, JKCCS representatives presented the report at the press conference organized by KIIR with Prime Minister of Pakistan Administered Kashmir Chaudhary Abdul Majeed as the guest of honour. The KIIR had re-printed the published report in Pakistan. 
 	On 18 October 2015, JKCCS researcher/lawyer Kartik Murukutla was detained on his return from Pakistan at the Wagah border by Indian Customs, and intelligence officials interrogated him. The re-printed copy of the report “Structures of Violence: The Indian State in Jammu and Kashmir” reprinted in Pakistan was impounded and fine of Rs. 5,000 was imposed for importing a questionable report. 
“Structures of Violence…” was released in Srinagar on 9 September 2015, presented before the UN bodies in Geneva in the same month, and re-launched in Islamabad, Pakistan on 17 October 2015. To date, despite being provided a copy of the report, there has been no response to the report whatsoever from Government of India or Jammu and Kashmir. The only response from the State has been the recent seizure of the report and intimidation at the border.



UDHAMPUR TRUCK ATTACK VICTIM DIES
ZAHID’S DEATH TRIGGERS MASSIVE PROTESTS, CLASHES

On October 18, one of the victims Zahid Rasool Bhat, the conductor of a truck seriously injured in a petrol bomb attack by right wing goons in Udhampur on October 9, succumbed to injuries at Safdurjung Hospital in New Delhi after battling for life for nine days. The conditions of both the victims were stated to be critical including the driver on time of being admitted to the hospital, as most part of their bodies had serious and deep burn injuries.  The incident took place in the backdrop of beef ban controversy, which triggered valley-wide protests. 
Hospital insiders said that Zahid, who was admitted to the Burns Ward of the hospital with 74 percent burns, breathed his last at 11.30 a.m. after his condition worsened in the last 12 hours.
 (
“A dozen or more goons who emerged from the nearby Hotel Dolphin and looked quite prepared for the attack”
“
Had any Kashmiri indulged in such a crime he would have been booked under some harshest law. We demand all attackers be arrested and booked under the PSA.
”
 
“We stopped Mufti on the college gate only to return the money that had been provided us two days ago as compensation. We returned Rs 30,000, Rs 10,000 in cash and a cheque of Rs 20, 000,”
)This incident has unnerved the transporters and Jammu bond drivers, who seems reluctant to ply their vehicles on Srinagar-Jammu highway, the main rout connects valley with India. This incident refresh the gory memories of year Amarnath land row 2008 when Hindu rioters imposed economic blockade of the valley and attacked scores of Kashmiri truck and sumo drivers on national highway carrying passengers and essential supplies. One of the drivers Mohammad Latief Wani died in an attack on him by Hindu rioters at Lakhanpur, Punjab. 
Zahid, son of Ghulam Rasool Bhat of Battengoo village in Anantnag district, was conductor of the truck that was en route to Kashmir when a mob attacked it with petrol bombs on October 9. 
The entire incident has been recorded on CCTV and two attackers were arrested immediately by the policemen deployed on patrolling duty. Later, two more persons were arrested.
The arrested included Harish Katoch Bal Bahadur, Sandoor Singh and Suneet Singh. All are residents of Udhampur in Jammu region.
Two persons first broke the front glass of the truck and later threw a petrol bomb inside the truck on October 9 night.
The two along with a cleaner were sleeping inside the truck at the time of the incident and Showkat and Zahid sustained burns while the cleaner, Rameez, escaped unhurt as he managed to jump out of the truck.
The truck was on its way to Srinagar from Jammu and was stationed near Shiv Nagar area as traffic on Jammu-Srinagar Highway was stopped in view of the a strike called by various Hindu outfits following recovery of three carcasses of animals in the district.
Rameez Ahmad Bhat, who has had a fortuitous escape from what he described as “a dozen or more goons who emerged from the nearby Hotel Dolphin and looked quite prepared for the attack” was excitable in the way people who have been lucky in life-and-death situations are.
The entire setting was depressing. Rameez said how he would not wear a shirt after the incident, having taken his off trying to douse the fire on Zahid’s body.
	“The policemen, bureaucrats and politicians kept asking me to wear one because it made them look bad” he says, “But I was adamant, ‘Those Hindus tried to kill us, I don’t want to be clothed by you guys.’”
	Finally, a senior ranking police officer managed to put him under a shirt when they were about to be flown to Delhi. I looked at his shirt. It was an old shirt, the kind a truck driver would wear.
	On October 13, Chief Minister Mufti Sayeed had to face protests from the relatives and family members of the victims. The state government had given Rs 20,000 in cash to the families of the duo and also funded their air travel to Indian capital.
On October 13, Tuesday, the family members and relatives of the truckers demonstrated outside the Degree College Khanabal when CM was leaving it after inaugurating an auditorium.
As soon as Mufti reached the college gate, the protesting relatives of the victims shouted slogans forcing him to stop his vehicle and talk to them for a couple of minutes, witnesses said. The protesters were joined by college students who shouted anti-India and pro-freedom slogans, demanding stern punishment to the assailants, five of whom have been arrested.
Mohammad Ashraf Molvi, Showkat’s brother-in-law, said the attackers should be booked under the Public Safety Act.
“Had any Kashmiri indulged in such a crime he would have been booked under some harshest law. We demand all attackers be arrested and booked under the PSA,” Molvi said.
He said they have also returned the cash, provided to them for the treatment of the injured, to the chief minister.
“We stopped Mufti on the college gate only to return the money that had been provided us two days ago as compensation. We returned Rs 30,000, Rs 10,000 in cash and a cheque of Rs 20, 000,” he stated.
On October13, evening, the families of the victims accused the state government of threatening the families with PSA immediately after they returned the compensation amount to CM Mufti Mohammad Sayeed. “On October 13, Tuesday evening, we were threatened by the deputy commissioner and tehsildar Anantnag that we will be arrested and booked under the PSA if we highlight the issue before media,” said Ghulam Mohammad Dar, father of one of the victims, Showkat Ahmad Dar. According to Dar, both the officials called him on the phone — of which he claimed to have proof – asking for his bank details so that Rs 50,000 could be deposited in his accounts. Echoing the story, Ghulam Rasool Bhat, the father of another victim, Zahid Ahmad, said they returned Rs 40,000 (Rs 20,000 compensation amount and Rs 20,000 for air tickets) to Mufti during an event at Anantnag.
Zahid’s death sparked protests in some areas of Kashmir Valley. Batengoo in south Kashmir's Anantnag district, the native village of Zahid, observed a spontaneous shutdown to protest against the killing.
"Batengoo village, which is on Srinagar-Jammu Highway, has shutdown in protest against the death of Zahid Ahmed," an official at Police Control Room (PCR) Anantnag told PTI over phone.
Clashes broke out in Batengoo and surrounding areas between protesters and police personnel, a police official said.
The protesters pelted stones at police and paramilitary forces, who retaliated by firing tear smoke shells, he said, adding that there was no report of anyone getting hurt.
"The highway has been closed," the official said, adding additional police personnel are on standby.

IN PHILANTHROPIC EDUCATIONALIST KILLING BY IKHWANIS, POLICE SCRIPTED MISLEADING FIR   

On January 29, 1996, Abdul Aziz Peer of Nagri, Peer Mohalla, Kupwara was shot dead by Ikhwanis at his residential house as his family members helplessly witnessing the murder. It appeared he was killed for his association with a Jamaat-e-Islamia (JEI) run school Falaah-e-Aam at Kupwara. Ironically, the police in its FIR mentioned Aziz Peer as OGW of Hizbul Mujahideen to “cover up” the murder and to bail-out the actual perpetrators. However, the allegations leveled by police against Peer Abdul Aziz were rejected by his family as baseless. The family squarely blamed Ikhwanis for his killing and accused police of shielding them. 
 (
His activities and association with JEI run school caught the attention of Ikhwanis who were out to neutralize people associated with militancy or political organization like JEI.
On opening the door, as many as 15 
pheran
 clad armed Ikhwanis were spotted around the house. Sensing danger Peer Muhammad Akbar paid them rupees eleven thousand, the amount they had with them at that time, and gold ornaments.  
One of the masked Ikhwanis who called Peer was in constant touch with somebody, probably Rashid Khan, through his walkie talkie, conveyed to his associates 
“there were orders to kill”.
Three Ikhwanis including Gul Policewala were killed by the army camped at Punzoo.
)The Informative Missive talked to the son-in-law of Abdul Aziz, Peer Akbar, a retired head master, who narrated the whole story how the killing of his father-in-law was orchestrated by Rashid Khan, an Ikhwan group commander. 
Abdul Aziz Peer, an Ali Ghar Muslim University MA, M. Ed pass out in 1968 joined the Education Department and superannuated in 1992 as Zonal Educational Officer (ZEO). Having strong educational background he got himself associated with a JEI run School Falaah-e- Aam. He was commanding respect in his area for his social and philanthropic activities.  He was the person responsible for massive contribution in promoting education in his area. 
His activities and association with JEI run school caught the attention of Ikhwanis who were out to neutralize militancy and their sympathizers. It was the time when Ikhwanis were on rampage and had license to do what they wish. On the other hand, there was also militant presence in the area, who used to take shelter in Peer Mohalla village. If the Ikhwan militia was enjoying the patronage of the army and government, the militants did enjoy local mass support, though secretly. However, Abdul Aziz never facilitated militants or their sympathizers; his main focus was on social activities and educational promotion in the area. He was serving as a torchbearer, a man committed to spreading education.
Well-known for his financial generosity, Ikhwanis demanded an amount of Rs. 5 lac (five hundred thousand rupees) from Abdul Aziz. Extortion was one of the methods employed by the Ikhwanis to harass and loot people. The family members of Abdul Aziz agreed to pay the amount, however, Aziz himself resisted to pay them a single penny.  He preferred getting killed over submitting to the Ikhwanis unlawful demand.  Since the area was in Ikhwan tight grip, therefore, posing threat to the people like Aziz, his family inter see decided to migrate from the village to wade off the Ikhwan threat. However, the family later dropped the migration idea, as it could cause great inconvenience to get settle elsewhere and there was no guarantee of any safety anywhere. Abdul Aziz has seven daughters most of them minors. One of his daughters was married to Peer Mohammad Akbar.
On January 29, at 08:30 pm, which coincided with 10th Ramadhan, there were Ikhwan threats to Aziz’s family. Peer Mohammad Akbar begged before his father-in-law that they will leave the village, however, senior Peer, Abdul Aziz refused to do so. On the same night, at 11:30 pm, there was a frightening knock. On opening the door, as many as 15 pheran clad armed Ikhwanis were spotted around the house. Sensing danger Peer Muhammad Akbar paid them rupees eleven thousand, the money they had with them at that time, and gold ornaments.  
Some of the Ikhwanis who were part of the group, who came that night, were identified as Gul Policewala, a policeman-turned-renegade of Mughalpora, Lal Din, of Hyhama currently living in Kursu, Rajbagh, Mohi-ud-Din, of Hatmullah.  These renegades were accusing Peer of being Jamaat activist and an associate of APHC leader Syed Ali Shah Geelani. Since Geelani’s first wife belonged to this village, however, Peer has no direct affiliation with his party. 
The renegades had actually come for Aziz Peer who had hidden inside the house to evade Ikhwanis. Fearing serious trouble, the family members made endevours to pacify the raiding gang and to some extent they satisfied the Ikhwanis. Among the group was a masked Ikhwani, with only eyes visible, was talking to someone, most probably with Rashid Khan, who through a walkie talkie suddenly conveyed to his associates “there are orders to kill”. On this, the raiding party stormed the house and fired at Abdul Aziz, who was coming out of the bathroom. Abdul Aziz died while his daughter Sakina Begum got injured in the shootout. The gunshots woke up the neighbours who visited the family after the Ikhwanis left.  
FIR U/S 3/25 Arms Act, 302 RPC in police station Kupwara was lodged. The Police of the zone twisted the facts and labeled Abdul Aziz as Over Ground Worker (OGW) of Hizbul Mujahideen. The family is convinced the assailants carried out the killing on the orders of Ikhwan command Rashid Khan. While as the well-identified assailants who carried out the killing on the orders of Rashid Khan, the then SHO filed the FIR against unknown gunmen. Ironically, the SHO was rude with the family blaming it of creating ‘trouble’ in the area. There was no investigation ever initiated by the police neither any final report has been filed before the competent Magistrate, as required under law. In the FIR unknown gunmen was mentioned as perpetrators. 
One month after the killing, during Parliamentary Elections, Ikhwanis threatened the villagers including Peer’s family not to boycott the Elections and passed a diktat to vote only for National Conference. However, Peer’s family boycotted the polls. On the polling day, three Ikhwanis including Gul Policewala were killed by the army camped at Punzoo. They were killed for violating the instruction for not to carrying weapons near the camp without prior permission from army. In the evening, state run radio broadcast in its news bulletin that “three militants” were been killed by the army in Kupwara.
There was no respite for family and the frustration swelled up as the relatives, near and distant, avoid visiting Peer’s family for years. One of the Peer Akbar’s sons to avenge his grandfather’s killing was eager to join militancy. However, Akbar managed his anger and got him admitted for education in Meerut, Uttar Pradesh where he stayed for ten years. 

IKHWANI WHO KILLED POLICEMAN ROAM FREE

Not only the civilians but even, in service, policeman was killed by the dreaded Ikhwanis led by Rashid Khan in 90s in Kupwara district when they were on terror spree. The case of a policeman, Abdul Rashid Reshi of Manzhar, Kupwara in north Kashmir killed by Ikhwanis speaks about the volumes of the terror Ikhwanis had let loose. Despite being in the police, Abdul Reshid was as helpless as any other hapless civilian. He was abducted and subsequently killed by Rashid Khan, an Ikhwan group commander. Reshi was abducted from Kupwara Chowk and later his body was thrown at Chalgund village of Kupwara district. Rashid Khan made up frivolous allegations against the policeman that he supports militancy. However, the same charge the Ikhwan commander never proved against him. Although an FIR was filed against the killing, however, no investigation was conducted. Villagers who witnessed to the crime of the Ikhwan commander were pressured by the life threats, therefore, forcing them to change their statement.    
The Informative Missive researcher visited the house of the deceased policeman where he gathered the anecdotal account from his younger brother Ghulam Nabi Reshi about the killing. Before killing Reshi, Rashid Khan and his associates were monitoring Reshi’s movements.  Ghulam Nabi said, “no one in the family or Reshi himself has any inkling of him being on the Ikhwan radar. We are still wondering as to why Rashid was after my brother. Rashid, who was associated with army stationed at Payalpora Camp, was one of the feared names in the area. Reshi was looking for excuses to eliminate my brother and label him as militant supporter will only helps to execute Rashid’s sinister design.” 
Ghulam Nabi further stated, “Twenty-days before his killing Rashid Khan demanded Rs. 50,000/- which he himself paid to him without asking any question. Rashid Khan had developed habit of extortion from the days he was a militant. Extorting people was rampant in the area and the people who resist or refuse to oblige has to face Ikhwan wrath. However, we never get any hint that Rashid was after my brother. It was the time when they (Ikhwanis) were enjoying strong govt. and army patronage.” 
On September 9- 1995, when the Ikhwan was at its peak, Rashid Reshi was abducted from Kupwara Chowk by a group of 5-6 Ikhwanis sent by Rashid Khan. “Rashid Reshi was on his way to home returning from his duty when Ikhwanis intercepted him and forced him into a vehicle, the registration number of which was not ascertained. They took him to Chalgund, Kupwara to the house of Rashid Khan where from he operates. On September 11, we came to know about Reshi’s disappearance. Sarwar Gania, Rashid Khan’s associate, when contacted vaguely told us to meet Rashid as he may know his whereabouts. When Rashid Khan was approached he admiteed Reshi being in his custody and even assured of his release once he get satisfied from his questioning,” Ghulam Nabi stated.
On the intervening night of September 11 and 12 Rashid Khan raided Reshi’s house and beat all the inmates including women folk in the lawn of the house. Then Rashid Khan also set on fire the Reshi’s house. Ghulam Nabi further stated, “On the night when Reshi was killed, Rashid Khan and his men raided our house and beat us all and on leaving set the house on fire. The raid was conducted only to give the impression that he has not killed Reshi. On September 12 morning, a news spread that two bodies were found in a village. On identification one was of Reshi’s and the other was identified as of Mohammad Akbar Gania of Chalgund. The bodies were lying abandoned at Payarpora, a place situated between Chalgund and Manzhar villages. Akbar, a teacher, was Rashid Khan’s neighbor and he too was killed and thrown by Rashid Khan.”
While looking for the reasons why Reshi was killed Ghulam Nabi quoted Sarwar Gania, that “Rashid was forcing Reshi to admit that he has a plan to kill Rashid Khan. However, he has no substantial proof to establish his suspicion against Reshi”. Rashid was killed for not admitting what Rashid was forcing him to admit. Like any other Kashmiri, Reshi has sympathies towards militants but there was nothing pragmatic by him towards militancy.  Rashid Khan has self-created internal fear. It was the time when civilians were killed by Ikhwanis even on mere suspicion. 
Then on the same day Reshi’s family lodged an FIR No. 264 / 95 against Rashid Khan for killing Rashid Reshi and Akbar. Wali Mohammad Reshi son of Ghulam Mohammad Reshi and Ghulam Ahmad Reshi son of Hayat Reshi who witnessed the killings by Rashid Khan were later threatened by him. The fear overtook the witnesses and they all changed their statements before the police only to the advantage of the perpetrators. Even police never tried to initiate any investigation in the case. 
Reshi was survived by his wife and two daughters. Her wife received ex gratia of Rs. 1 lack and govt. appointment under SRO 43. However, the painful for the family is still the perpetrator is roaming free without being ever hold accountable for crimes he has committed. 
A gist about Rashid Khan:
Rashid Khan was a surrendered militant of Jammu and Kashmir Liberation Front (JKLF) who joined ranks in Ikhwan militia in 1994. Keeping in view his notoriety and belligerent attitude, he was positioned as Group Commander of Ikhwan. There were strong allegations against him of loot, extortions and killings. With the wane in Ikhwan he switched to construction business. 

MY WIFE WAS ALSO TORTURE: KHATANA 
Kalandar Khatana’s case is the depiction of worst forms of torture in Jammu and Kashmir by the Border Security Forces (BSF). Both of his legs were chopped off during his torture by Border Security Forces (BSF), who accused him of guiding the militants. Lately, his torture gets wide publicity through print and social media and his case also figured in Channel 4’s award winning documentary Torture Trails, focusing on the phenomenon of torture in J&K. However, the torture of his, now dead, wife finds no mention anywhere. It was very recently that Khatana talks about his wife’s torture by BSF troopers only when he was asked for the reasons of her demise. The torture had damaged Khatana’s wife’s internal organs and the delay in treating, owing to abject poverty, only worsened her survival chances. 
Coming from far off Kalsroos area of Kupwara district Kalander Khatana occasionally visits CCS office in order to remain in touch with the organization. According to him, it was through CCS the people knows about his case, otherwise, like thousands of cases his case would have been evaporated in obscurity.    
The pretention to apply serious modes of torture on him was his alleged role as a militant guide facilitating the youth to cross over to PAK for arms training, a charge vehemently denied by Khatana.
Recalling the month of December 1990 the fear of which still refuse to un-grip him, Khatana told to The Informative Missive that a BSF contingent from 36 BN stationed at Moori, Kalaroos raided his muddy house and tortured him. “It was dead of a night at about 12:00 am when BSF soldiers raided my house to arrest me. In the very house I was mercilessly beaten to admit my role in facilitating youth to cross over to Pakistan Administered Kashmir for arms training. It was the time when youth across Kashmir were going in bulk to acquire arms training. The harsh beating continued for about 2 hours. The soldiers ransacked each and everything looking for the arms, I never possessed. Failing to find anything incriminating, even after digging the floor deep and smashing the walls, I was moved to Moori camp.”   
While Khatana was taken to the camp some of the soldiers stayed back at his house. “The soldiers who stayed at my home tortured my wife Bala Begum, then 20. She was continuously asked about weapons by the BSF and was beaten ruthlessly.  All over her body she was hit by gun butts.  Her abdomen was also hammered with gun butt blows, which resulted into her serious internal injuries,” Khatana stated.
	Since Khatana was in BSF detention followed by two year imprisonment there was no one in the house to take Bala Begum for treatment. Khatana further stated, “I was in detention and she had no means to reach to the hospital. No money and nobody to take care for her, therefore, the imperative treatment got delayed. It took four years, as she complained of regular internal pain, to take her to the hospital. Somehow, I arranged some money for transportation and moved her to a local hospital. On examining Bala Begum doctors diagnosed her with threatening internal injuries particularly to her intestines. It was not easy to arrange the costly treatment suggested by the doctors, as I myself was rendered handicapped by the torture and was myself in dire need of quality and expensive medical treatment. Both of my legs were chopped off owning to torture.” 
	Physically disabled Khatana has no source of income and not talk about the medical treatment even to meet his both ends was beyond his reach. “I have to survive on meager public charity and at times we had little to eat. The economical frustration coupled with forces harassment worsened things for me. Even after my release, my house was put under strict surveillance and normally put under siege by the BSF. Routinely, on the BSF instruction I had to appear in the camp for haziri. And one day the army set on fire my house and I was rendered homeless. Then I had live in a makeshift accommodation till I reconstructed the house with the local support. During the period along with me my wife also suffers badly,” Khatana averred.   
The concerned police station lodged FIR in the burning of house, however, didn’t mention the perpetrators. “From here and there I begged for money to arrange the medicines for my wife. Normally, she failed to keep up with the medicine doses for want of money. With every passing day her health falls and on September 22-2015 she breathed her last,” the torture survivor stated. 
Khatana stated for people his wife’s death was natural but for him it was the outcome of the torture. “After torture she had all painful years till her death. She might have find solace in her death.  Since the torture, she never slept with ease, the night twists and turns gave her lot of unease. We both had learnt to live with the pain, which had become an integral part of our life,” Khatana conclude.   

SON KILLED BY RENEGADES, MOTHER LOOSE EYE SIGHT 

Mohammad Ashraf Parray son of Assadullah Parray of Hajin area of Bandipora district figured in the list of victims extra-judicially executed by Ikhwanis working under the command of Kuka Parray, Ikhwan face in Kashmir. Ashraf’s untimely death shocked his mother who lost her eyesight due to perennial weeping. Ashraf was the only economic nerve to his family, which suffered badly after his killing.   
The Ikhawnis who plotted his killing to earn some hidden favours from their boss Kuka Parray were identified by his family as Abdul Rehman, Rashid Billa, Nazir Kouchay, Bashir Yaar and Dilawar. They accused Ashraf of being linked to the militancy. Not only that Ashraf was accused of plotting to kill Kuka Parray. 
 	Assadullah while talking to The Informative Missive said, “Ashraf and me were busy in our orchards, 2 km away from our house, when a group of Ikhwanis surrounded us. They all were well-armed. They instructed my son to assist them as they received some serious inputs against him.”
All these Ikhwanis were notorious for extortion and harassments to the general public. The father further stated, “When I came in between my son and them, one of the Ikhwanis aimed his gun at me. He asked me to stay away or face the bullet. Helpless, I watched them till they vanished with my son.” 
Ashraf was a hardworking carpet weaver and the allegations leveled against him were baseless, as it was the norm that they (Ikhwanis) used to harass people by accusing them of militant links. “My son had nothing to do with militancy and accusations against him were only to justify his illegal kidnapping. Ashraf was taken to the house of one of our relatives, Soni Rather in a nearby village. Using residential house to torture people was one of the tactics to deepen their fear. In his house, he was tied in between two wooden logs, on which carpet is weaved. He was accused of being working for Hizbul Mujahideen. For three consecutive days he was subjected to various forms of torture. His body failed to bear the torture and he died out of it. He was only 18-years-old and the only source of income to his family,” the dejected father said.  
It was learnt later that these Ikhwanis had got license to arrest and kill Ashraf from Kuka Parray, as they had misinformed their commander that Ashraf was plotting to kill him. These Ikhwanis, as the father claims, want to earn some favour from their boss, therefore, they misled him. 
While Ashraf was in the Ikhwan custody, Assadullah made an unsuccessful attempt to approach Kuka Parray to tell him the truth. However, he was hard done by Amma Parray, Kuka Parray’s brother.  
After Ashraf’s killing, his family migrated to another village called Bun Mohalla to avoid further intimidations. An FIR no. 38/1995 was filed against the killing with the Sumbal police station, however, no investigation was conducted.   
Ashraf’s killing hit the family manifold ways. His mother shocked by his son’s killing lost her eyesight due to the perennial weeping and the family since his killing is struggle with poverty. Even Asadullah has no money to get his wife treated. 

POLICE SHIELD ACCUSED IN 19-YEAR-OLD SADERKOOT MASSACRE
19TH ANNIVERSARY OF SADERKOOT MASSACRE

On 5 October 1996, seven members of three families in Saderkoot -Bala, Bandipora, were killed by government gunmen [Ikhwan] under the control of the13 Rashtriya Rifles, camped in Manasbal.
FIR no. 125/1996 has to date led to no arrests and no chargesheet. This is despite the fact that eye-witnesses have clearly identified the government gunmen responsible for the massacre including three alive including prime accused Abdul Rashid Parray, alias Rashid Billa. The other two alive accused are: Wali Mohammad Mir and Mohammad Ayoub Dar. The family members of the victims were forced to approach the Jammu and Kashmir High Court in 2015 to revive the investigations in this case [Petition no: OWP 732/2015]. 
Despite the intervention of the High Court, the Jammu and Kashmir Police continue to shield the accused in this case. This is clearly brought out by objections filed by Mohammad Shabir, Senior Superintendent of Police, Bandipora, in September, 2015 in the High Court petition. SSP Shabir accepts that the accused government gunmen have been identified, three of whom are alive, but states that they are yet to be arrested as they “are willfully and deliberately evading their arrest”. Further, SSP Shabir states that it is denied that the government gunmen were working under 13 Rashtriya Rifles. All three accused are in Bandipora district, regularly sighted by the public and main accused Rashid Billa has police protection. In fact, Rashid Billa is working at and draws salary from the Block Development Office, Hajin. Further, the police have no basis to deny the control of the accused by 13 Rashtriya Rifles. In the absence of investigations, the police seek to protect the Indian army and shield them from any proceedings.    
This case once again illustrates that a change of government or the intervention of the judiciary does not affect the status quo vis-à-vis human rights abuses in Jammu and Kashmir: impunity for the perpetrators.  
We, the survivors of the Saderkoot massacre, today remember the victims, and pledge to continue the struggle for justice. The police must immediately arrest the three accused, carry out fair and proper investigations on the role of 13 Rashtriya Rifles, and submit a chargesheet before court. 
Ghulam Qadir Dar, Tariq Ahmed Dar, Manzoor Ahmed Dar, Ghulam Ahmed Dar
On behalf of the: Families of the Saderkoot Massacre

UNION OF INDIA HAS NO RESPONSE TO KUNAN POSHPORA CASE IN SUPREME COURT

On October 3, Jammu Kashmir Coalition of Civil Society, Kunan Poshpora Village Committee and Support Group for Justice for Kunan Poshpora jointly issued a press statement as union of India has no response to Kunan Poshpora case in Apex Court of India. 
The statement read: In December 2014, Government of Jammu and Kashmir challenged before the Supreme Court the Srinagar High Court orders to pay compensation for the Kunan Poshpora mass rape and torture of 23/24 February 1991. 
To date, almost a year later, the Government has failed to serve the parties [intimate them of the petition] – including the 9 officers of the 4 Rajputana Rifles – and Union of India has failed to file its response in this case. The Registrar of the Supreme Court on 30 September 2015 denied any further opportunity to Union of India [through Ministry of Defence] to file a response.
The survivors of Kunan Poshpora have at every forum – including the Supreme Court – emphasized the urgency for fair and independent investigations. But, whether the Government, which has failed to serve the parties, or Union of India, that has deemed it unnecessary to even respond to the petition, the State seeks to delay proceedings and thereby shield the accused army personnel.
The new government of Jammu and Kashmir has continued the earlier government’s approach to the case and has chosen not to withdraw the petition in the Supreme Court. Instead, the Jammu and Kashmir State Women’s Commission Chairperson, Nayeema Mehjoor, visited the villages of Kunan Poshpora reportedly on the behest of Mehbooba Mufti [President, PDP] and met the survivors but there has been no follow up action specifically on the case.
In January 2015, Indian army filed a petition against the lower court orders on further investigations. Indian army ensured the matter was listed in vacations, before Justice Tashi Rabstan, vacation judge in the Jammu and Kashmir High Court, Srinagar, and a stay was issued on 15 January on investigations without hearing the survivors and despite the matter already being listed before a Division Bench of the same court as a PIL. 

‘INCENDIARY’ TEARGAS SHELL BURNS 8-YEAR-OLD BOY’S FACE
DOCTORS SAY IT IS THE FIRST SUCH CASE

Oct 13: Aamir Bilal, a class 3 student, who is being treated at the SMHS Hospital for burns, had gone out to fetch milk when the canister, fired by the police at protesters demonstrating against immolation bid on Kashmiri truckers in Jammu, exploded in front of him in Saraf Kadal on October 11, his family said.
Doctors treating him say his is a rare case of burn injuries caused by a teargas canister.
“We have seen cases where people have suffered severe irritation in eyes or the respiratory tract, or suffered wounds after being hit by teargas canister directly. But Aamir’s case is the first of its kind in which a person’s entire face got burned because of a teargas shell. It is probably a new teargas shell,” says Shabir Iqbal, a professor of plastic surgery at the SMHS Hospital.
A doctor at the surgical emergency ward said Aamir has 18 per cent burn injuries and will recover in time.
“A teargas has come his way and it had burst. The fumes of it had gone into the respiratory track; his eyes have also got affected. But major damage is on the face and arms,” says Shabir Iqbal.
A police officer, wishing anonymity, said that it appears the teargas canister was set afire in this case, but “it can cause burns if it explodes close to a person”.
Aamir’s father Bilal Ahmad said, “I went crazy when I saw his face. My entire body was shaking and I couldn’t stop crying.”
“While I was in this miserable state, the policemen had seized the car in which Aamir was brought to the hospital and also detained the persons who drove it. I had to go the police station to make them understand that these people have helped my son and they were not protesters,” Bilal added.
Bilal and many Saraf Kadal residents who visited the injured boy said they have never seen him throwing stones at police.
“How can a kid be a stone thrower?” he said.

KILLING OF SPOS-TURNED-MILITANTS
FAMILIES REJECT ‘REJOINING-ENCOUNTER THEORY’; DEMAND PROBE

On September 8 forces claimed to have killed two militants, who had escaped with their service rifles on September 8 this year from Doda and allegedly rejoined militancy.
On October 16, the family members of two SPO-turned-militants killed by the forces in forests of Doda, demanded high-level probe into the claims about rejoining of militancy by duo and also apprehended foul play in the encounter.
“We have apprehensions about the way they were killed after they mysteriously disappeared along with their service weapons from police department and rejoined militancy,” said Farooq Ahmed, elder brother of slain Mohammed Raiz.
Farooq expressed shock over his slain brother’s rejoining the militant ranks and said he (Raiz) was ‘happy with his life.’
“He never remained tense and was enjoying his job in police department. One thing, which hurts us his rejoining militant ranks and then the killing,” said Farooq.
How can they remain in forests for a month and seven days without the help of others (whether militants or security agencies), he questioned and further alleged that except these two slain militants no other ultra was found by the forces. He expressed doubt about his brother’s rejoining militancy and killing too.
He told media that the family came to know about Raiz from the police when he went missing from the DPL with his service rifle on September 8th and yesterday too, police informed them about his killing with another militant commander.
“There was no third militant. They were only two, who were from police. Government must order a high-level probe over the killing and rejoining theory. There must be something fishy,” another family member of slain ultra Raiz said.
He said Raiz did not establish any contact with the family before or after rejoining militancy. He said his younger brother (Raiz) had surrendered with seven militants in Kathua and then remained posted there as SPO.
	“Raiz joined the militant ranks when he was studying in 8th standard in Government High School, Hambal in Badni village of Marmat,” the aggrieved brother of the slain militant recalled.  
He said the dead cannot speak out what happened with them. “It is the government which can order probe so that families come to know about the facts,” he added.
We thought he was on a mission in forests: 
A close relative of Gul Mohammed, the District Commander of Hizbul Mujahideen, pleading anonymity alleged that the slain militant commander was spending his days in tension from some time but did not intend to rejoin militant ranks.
He said, “We were not shocked when he rejoined militancy. Instead, we thought Gul along with another SPO Riaz Mohammed was sent by the police department to carry out search in the forests of Doda.”
There were rumors in Doda from sometimes that militants have come on the upper reaches of the district following which the family never believed the claim of the forces that he (Gul) rejoined militancy, the aggrieved family of the slain HM Commander said.
 	“We thought they were sent on a mission by the forces but their killing has created apprehensions. Why he rejoined militancy when Gul was the father of two daughters and family was dependent on him? the relative of the deceased HM militant alleged.
He said last year a team from Delhi had come for his interrogation at Dak Banglow.
“Gul was called to the concerned police station and was sent to Dak Bangalow where other surrendered militants were also interrogated brutally allegedly by a security agency a year back,” recalled the relative of the militant commander.
He said Gul had torture marks on the body. “He fell ill for long time following the interrogation. We had to shift him to Jammu for advanced treatment.”
He claimed that before joining militancy Gul was working as a tailor and lived his life happily. However, frequent interrogations by the forces and illegal confinement by them forced him to escape from the house and join militancy. His elder brother Shabir Ahmed –a labourer was also picked up by the forces and tortured many a times, he claimed.
“The family forced him to surrender and return to the normal life. Accordingly, he surrendered before the forces and joined police department as SPO,” uncle of the slain militant commander Gul claimed.
“Rejoining militancy is a mystery which needs to be probed,” he demanded, while apprehending a foul play. “We don’t know the facts. Allah knows it and if anything wrong has been done with them, He should punish those people,” the helpless family member rued.

POLICE PRESSURISES MAN TO SIGN PAPERS TO ADMIT HIS BROTHER REJOINING MILITANTS

Oct 14: A man in south Kashmir’s Kokernag area was allegedly tortured for three days in police custody in order to force him to sign papers claiming his brother has joined militant ranks.
28-year-old Bashir Ahmad Wani, a former Lashkar-e-Toiba militant, went missing after appearing for hearing in a case at the Anantnag district court on October 1. Since then, he has not returned home. Last week, a police party from police station Kokernag picked up Bashir’s younger brother, Mudasir Ahmad Wani, and shifted him to JIC Anantnag for “interrogation”.
“I was beaten for three days. The police pressurised me to sign papers that my brother has joined militants. I refused because I have no knowledge about my brother’s whereabouts,” Mudasir told media.
“I can’t ruin my brother’s life by signing the papers. We are worried about his safety, but the police are harassing us. Instead of tracing my brother, they are asking me about his whereabouts,” he said, expressing the fear that he may again be ‘called’ by the police.
When Bashir left his home, he was reportedly carrying an umbrella and he was last seen boarding a cab towards his home at Dialgam.
“He boarded a cab at Dialgam to go home, but did reach here. He didn’t have a mobile phone,” said Mudasir, who learnt about his brother boarding the cab from people.
Bashir had received arms training in Pakistan and was an active militant in the Valley before being arrested. Bashir was first arrested in Shangus area and spent some years (Mudasir does not remember the exact number of years) in jail. After his release, he rejoined militancy but was again arrested in Achabal. However, the third time Bashir was arrested, says Mudasir, he wasn’t with the militants and was framed by the police; Bashir then was arrested without informing his family. “For two months, we had no knowledge about his whereabouts. Police and army would raid our house and harass us and seek details about him. Later, they produced him in police station Kokernag after two months,” Mudasir said, suspecting “the police or army might have picked him up again”.
Mudasir said he cannot believe that his brother would have joined militants because of his health. “His arm and leg are fractured. He was weak,” he said. Bashir had plans to earn a livelihood and get married later. Moreover, the brothers have lost both parents and lived on their own.
“We were planning to sell off a plot of land and buy a passenger bus for him so that he could make a living. He was also mentally ready to drive a bus. But I will not believe he has again joined militants,” Mudasir said.

ARMY MAN ARRESTED FOR RAPE IN POONCH

Oct 8: An army man was arrested for allegedly raping a woman in Poonch district of Jammu and Kashmir, police said.
The accused, Haq Nawaz, who is deployed with 6 Engineers Regiment and presently posted in Kashmir, was on leave when he barged into the house of a lady in Mankote area of Mendhar tehsil on Tuesday night and allegedly raped her when she was alone, police said.
He also threatened her not to disclose the incident to anyone and escaped from her house, they added.
A case has been registered following a complaint by the victim, police said, adding, the accused was arrested after a manhunt by the police. PTI

UDAIPUR: 1,200 J&K STUDENTS ‘TOLD TO LEAVE’ VARSITY AFTER CLASH

October 2: About 1,200 students from Jammu and Kashmir were allegedly asked to vacate Pacific University in Udaipur district following a clash with local students. Almost three weeks later, they are still waiting to be called back, though many are apprehensive about returning.
On October 1, a delegation of about 70 students and their parents met J&K BJP president Jugal Kishore Sharma and apprised him of the issue. “They are scared about returning. We are taking it up with party leaders in Rajasthan and hopefully it will be addressed soon,” said BJP’s state secretary Pawan Khajuria.
On September 12, a student from J&K reportedly protested about an unclean plate at the mess of the university. The mess in-charge allegedly slapped him, leading to a clash between supporters from both sides. Supporters of the mess in-charge, a local, allegedly told local students that “the Kashmiris indulged in anti-national sloganeering, inciting them to attack us”, said Rashpal Singh, a student of BTech, over phone from Udhampur.
To control the situation, police was deployed and the district administration reportedly asked the students to vacate the university. “We went there on the PM’s scholarship. Even before the clash, locals taunted us that we were studying for free,” said a student. The students are worried about their careers. “I was informed that they have restarted the classes without us,” a student said.
“It was not a communal issue. It was just that some Kashmiri Rajputs were involved. The warden had called the local students. No FIR from either side was registered, though one FIR on a complaint by the university was lodged,” said Udaipur SP Rajender Prasad Goyal. “The university was closed for 15 days and the students are welcome now. We will provide them protection if they need it,” he added. University officials declined to take questions.

2 J&K YOUTHS THRASHED IN SOUTHEAST DELHI

Oct 29: Two Kashmiri students in Delhi have reportedly been thrashed by some Scorpio-borne youth near Maa Anandamayee Marg in southeast Delhi’s Govindpuri area.
The incident which happened this on October 29 evening left Mohammed Shakeer (22) and Muneeb Geelani (22) of Srinagar with life-threatening injuries.
The duo was heading towards a friend’s residence in Tara Apartment in their Maruti Ritz when they were honked repeatedly by a Scorpio despite there being no space around to move.
When the duo objected, two unidentified men, aged around 25 years, got off the SUV with a baseball bats and smashed the windshield of their Ritz car. They attackers also thrashed them with the baseball bat and fled the scene. The boys were immediately shifted to hospital. A police official said that a case has been registered in this regard
Meanwhile, the investigation has turned a little more difficult for the cops with the registration number noted by the victims not matching the concerned car. The police are now monitoring CCTV grabs obtained from the area and questioning locals for leads into the probe, said an official.

COPS REGISTER CASE IN AWANTIPORA FIRING, AREA SHUTS IN PROTEST

Oct 14: Police have registered a case against ‘unidentified security personnel’ for firing at and injuring three youth Tuesday evening in Awantipora area of Pulwama district.
 	Eyewitnesses alleged that paramilitary CRPF men opened fire on the youth who were trying to clear heavy traffic jam near Islamic University of Science and Technology (IUST) crossing in Awantipora on the highway. Three of them sustained fire-arm injuries and are being treated at SMHS Hospital Srinagar.
 	The CRPF, however, refuted the allegations.
 	“The allegations against us are baseless. Our men did not open fire at all,” PRO CRPF, Ashish Kumar Jhan, said. Police, however, has taken cognizance of the incident and registered an FIR.
 	“We have lodged an FIR bearing number 107-2015 under section 307 RPC (attempt to murder) in Awantipora police station against unidentified security personnel,” said a police official.
He said: “We are not sure which security force personnel are responsible for firing.”
Complete shutdown was today observed in Awntipora area against the firing. All commercial establishments and offices remained closed.

ARMY THREATENED ME FOR KASHMIR COVERAGE: SHEKHAR GUPTA
‘INDIAN MEDIA HAS NEVER BEEN TRUTHFUL WITH KASHMIR’

Oct 15: Noted Indian journalist, Shekhar Gupta said he would often receive threats from the Indian Army and other government establishments for covering Kashmir.
“We got a lot of flak for covering Kashmir,” he said speaking at the book release function of Aina Numa, a collection of writings of the former Member of Parliament and editor of ‘Aina’, late Shamim Ahmad Shamim.
Gupta, who remained the editor-in-chief of Indian Express for 19 years and also served as the vice chairman of the India Today Group for a while, was the chief guest on the occasion.
“When we broke the story of Pathribal fake encounter in Indian Express, and did a number of investigative follow up stories, I was getting phone calls from the Indian Army who would tell me, ‘What type of stories are you covering,’” he said.
	He said Kashmir was inextricably woven in the national security story and had been covered as a problem not as a place or people.
“National media sees it purely through the paradigm of that story – Line of Control, infiltration, gunfights, militants, and so on,” Gupta said. “This type of journalism has bedeviled the concept of Kashmir in India.”
Gupta, an author of Assam: A valley divided and India redefines its role, said it was unfortunate that journalists with very little knowledge of Kashmir were parachuted to the Valley to cover Kashmir.
“These people spend a week inside a hotel, do not even come to know about the day-to-day problems of the people like long hours of power curtailments, and return with stories of underlying danger of security increasing in Kashmir,” he said and accepted that Indian media had never been truthful with Kashmir coverage.
	Gupta, who did his initial schooling from an RSS-run institution, said reporting anything truthful, embarrassing, or a setback was seen to be anti-national.
	“But does it serve the national interest? We came to the conclusion that truth will never hurt the national interest,” he said. “We did a story when the GoC of the 15 Corps called DCs and SPs and told them to target people under the Public Safety Act and we did stories on fake surrender of militants, Srinagar sex-abuse scandal, and the killings of three persons allegedly by the DGP Kuldeep Khoda.”
	Gupta, a keen Kashmir watcher, who has written extensively on Kashmir, said Kashmir does not need parachute journalists.
	“Previously, calling an encounter a fake encounter was seen as a punishable act but it is no longer so as troops are now even punished in court martial proceedings,” he said. “There still are distortions but the coverage is much more open now.”
	Gupta also criticized the Indian media for hyperbole while covering Nepal earthquake after praising Indian Army out of way during the coverage of Kashmir floods.
	“We didn’t learn our lessons in Kashmir and we paid for it in Nepal,” he said.

GOVT HAS FAILED ITS OBLIGATION UNDER SHRC ACT: HC
DIRECTS REVIVAL OF THE COMMISSION ‘STRICTLY’ BY NOVEMBER 10

Oct 27: As the State Human Rights Commission continues to be defunct for over 15 months now, the High Court has said that the J&K government has failed in the obligation cast upon it under the SHRC Act, empowering the Commission to inquire into violation of human rights in the state.
Closing a PIL, a division bench of Chief Justice N Paul Vasanthakumar and Justice Hasnain Masoodi directed the government to appoint the Chairperson and four members of the Commission “strictly” by November 10.
The Court ordered the revival of the SHRC “so as to enable it to dispose of complaints, which are more than 2,000 in number, as expeditiously as possible and carry out the object and purpose of the Jammu and Kashmir Protection of Human Rights Act, 1997, i.e. for better protection of human rights and matters connected therewith or incidental thereto.” 
“The time limit mentioned has to be strictly adhered to as the stand taken by the (government) in the objections filed on October 6 is that the appointment of Chairperson and members of the SHRC is under its active consideration,” the court said.
	On September 15, Advocate General Jahangir Iqbal Ganie informed the court that immediately after the Committee meeting to appoint the Chairman and members of the State Accountability Commission, the meeting for selection of the Chairperson and members of the SHRC shall also be convened. Ganie had made the statement on the basis of written instructions given by the Additional Secretary to government of J&K, Department of Law, Justice and Parliamentary Affairs. However, there has been no progress.
Among other things, the SHRC is empowered to inquire, suo moto or on a petition presented to it by the victim or any person on this behalf, into complaints of violation of human rights or its abetment; or negligence in the prevention of violation by a public servant. It can also intervene in any proceeding involving any allegation or violation of human rights pending before a court with the approval of such court and visit any jail or any other institution for purposes of treatment, reformation or protection to study the living conditions of the inmates and make recommendations
“We are of the view that the state government has failed in its obligation/duty cast upon it under the Act and, therefore, this Court has to issue directions as it is a settled principle of law that if there is inaction on the part of the state government in carrying out the obligation/duty, the Courts are duty bound to step in and issue directions,” the bench said.
	Referring to a judgment by the Supreme Court, the bench observed that the Act has been enacted to provide better protection of human rights relating to life, liberty, equality, dignity of the individual guaranteed by the Constitution or embodied in International Covenants and enforceable by courts in the state. “The statute has conferred wide-ranging powers on the SHRC and the Commission is therefore required to be constituted of persons who have held very high constitutional offices earlier so that all aspects of good and adjudicatory procedures would be familiar to them,” the court said. 
	Headed by the CM, the panel to appoint the SHRC Chairman and members also comprises the Speaker of the legislative assembly, Chairman of legislative council, minister in-charge Home as well as the leaders of opposition in the assembly and the council.      
	As per the amended act, a person appointed as Chairperson or a member shall hold office for a term of five years from the date of entering office or until he attains the age of 75 years, whichever is earlier.
	The SHRC was left defunct on June 28 last year when two members, including Rafiq Fida who was also serving as its acting Chairperson, completed their term. The other member was Amlok Singh, who served it from June 28, 2011.
	The state human rights watchdog is actually headless since October 2011 when Justice (Retd) Bashir-ud-Din retired as Chairman. A month later, Abdul Rashid Khan, former Inspector General of Police, completed his term as member while Javaid Ahmad Kawoosa attained superannuation on October 24, 2013.
	Soon after the Chairman and the two members (Khan and Kawoosa) retired, the law, justice and parliamentary ministry had announced on its official website that filling up the vacancies was under “active consideration of the government and the process has already been initiated.”
	The PIL was filed by an NGO, J&K Peoples Forum, through its secretary general MM Shuja.

CRPF GOES ON ‘RAMPAGE’ IN KULGAM
DC ORDERS PROBE

Oct 31: Scores of people staged a protest outside District Development Commissioner’s office in South Kashmir’s Kulgam district accusing CRPF personnel from 18 Battalion of damaging more than 50 private vehicles and residential houses in the dead of the night.
The protesters who parked the damaged vehicles outside DC office alleged that scores of CRPF personnel from nearby 18 Battalion camp went on rampage on Thursday night and damaged the vehicles parked on roads as well as inside the residential houses.
“The CRPF personnel patrolled right from their camp to CP Branch and later moved to Hospital Road, damaging all the parked vehicles. They also barged into the houses and beat up inmates. These CRPF personnel seemed to be drunk who even didn’t spare elderly men and women. Whosoever tried to resist their action was ruthlessly beaten up. Some people fled from their houses to save themselves from the wrath of these men,” the protesters said.
 	“It was a hell like situation. We informed Deputy Commissioner Kulgam at the very moment but no one came forward to save us from these ‘unbridled’ gunmen,” said a protester Arshid Ahmed Ganaie whose new branded vehicle had been badly damaged in CRPF action.
	The owners of the damaged vehicles drove their vehicles to mini-secretariat and apprised District Development Commissioner Kulgam about the incident. DC assured them of action and compensation.
	Deputy Commissioner Kulgam, Dr Syed Abid said that he has constituted an inquiry committee to probe the matter and this committee will be headed by ADC Kulgam.
“I had received the call from the people at midnight who informed about the incident. I immediately contacted Station House Officer Kulgam to look into the matter,” he said adding that the affected people will surely be compensated and whosoever is responsible for the act will be taken to task.
	Meanwhile, Commandant CRPF 18 Battalion, Ankesh Kumar said that the allegations are baseless and no CRPF personal from his camp is involved in the act.

MASSACRE ANNIVERSARY OCT 22, 1993: WHEN BSF BUTCHERED 51 CIVILIANS IN BIJBEHARA

Oct 22: Twenty-two years have passed but the Border Security Force (BSF) personnel from 74th Battalion responsible for butchering 51 peaceful protestors in Bijbehara town of South Kashmir’s Islamabad (Anantnag) district have not been brought to book.
Among those killed, 25 were students.
“Thousands of people had gathered in the town that day after Friday prayers to protest against the siege of Hazratbal Shrine in Srinagar where some militants were holed up,” an eyewitness said.
“As the peaceful march reached near Goriwan locality, paramilitary BSF personnel blocked the road and did not allow the protestors to proceed. As anti-India slogans reverberated in air, the BSF men fired on the unarmed protestors, killing at least 40 persons on the spot and injuring more than 200 others,” the eyewitness said.
Another local, who at that time was just 17, said that BSF personnel resorted to indiscriminate firing for more than 10 minutes. He said that those people were also targeted and shot at who had come forward to carry the dead and injured, adding that ambulances and medical staff was also denied access to the injured persons.
Soon after the massacre, the government claimed that BSF personnel fired in self-defense as a group of armed militants fired at them, a claim refuted by eyewitnesses and human rights organizations.
On November 13, 1993, Inquiry Magistrate submitted a report vide number EN/BFC/93/23-24 and concluded that firing on the procession was absolutely unprovoked and the claim made by the troopers that they fired in self defence after militant firing is baseless and concocted.
The inquiry report further stated that the security personnel have committed offence out of vengeance and their barbarous act was deliberate and well planned. The report indicted Deputy Commandant of BSF, JK Radola, for tacit approval given by him for indiscriminate and un-provoked firing. Despite the magisterial inquiry, justice has been eluding the families of the victims from past 22 years.
Government of India conducted two enquiries and the National Human Rights Commission also conducted a probe. In March 1994 the government indicted the BSF for firing on crowd without provocation and charged 13 BSF officers with murder. A General Security Force Court Trial conducted in 1996, however, led to their acquittal. When the NHRC sought to examine the transcripts of the trials in order to satisfy itself that the BSF had made a genuine attempt to secure convictions, then Vajpayee-led Indian government refused.
The NHRC then moved to Supreme Court for a review. In September 2000, the Supreme Court dismissed the case.

MILITARIZATION
· 
· ARMY YET TO VACATE LAND REQUIRED FOR EXPANSION OF KU SOUTH CAMPUS
OWNERS SEEK RETURN OF 1000 KANALS ORCHARD LAND IN ANANTNAG
October 11: Despite Chief Minister setting three-month deadline for the Army to vacate land under its occupation for the expansion of Kashmir University’s South campus and establishment of a residential colony at High Ground Fatehgarh here, the process is yet to take off.
 	Further, the orchard owners whose land in the High Ground is also under Army use for last two decades are demanding vacation of their property and compensation for the period of use.
 	Chairing the Civil-Military Liaison (CML) Conference in Srinagar last month, Chief Minister Mufti Muhammad Sayeed had asked the Army to vacate the land. He had set a three-month deadline.
	“However the process of handing over 454 kanals of land to Kashmir University is yet to begin,” officials told media.
 	They said that though the district administration had already taken up the matter with Army following Chief Minister’s directions during his visit to the South Campus in July this year, the response has been cold.
 	“The said land is adjacent to KU South Campus and outside the 1 RR camp. The Army has, however fenced the entire land putting up barbed wires without paying any rent,” an official said.
 	350 kanals of land which was earlier also under Army use was transferred to the University authorities in 2004 during PDP-Congress coalition government. During his visit to the campus in July this year, the CM directed Deputy Commissioner (DC) Anantnag to explore possibility of acquiring additional land for creating adequate infrastructure at KU’s South Campus.
 	The civil society here has been pressing for establishing proposed medical college and technical colleges at High Ground. “The government is yet to find suitable land for the establishment of medical college and the vast land at High Ground will serve the purpose,” said Rao Farman Ali, spokesperson South Kashmir Civil Society.
 	He said that 2000 kanals agricultural land in the adjacent Dialgam village that government is mulling to take up for establishing medical college is beyond logic.
 	“Why at all you would use agricultural land when you have hundreds of kanals in main town which is an ideal location,” Farman opined.
 	“Besides taking possession of the proposed 454 kanals of land for expansion of KU campus, the government should also get the remaining land vacated from the Army to set up Medical, Engineering and Polytechnic colleges in the town as well as building cricket stadium,” residents of Kadipora and Sarnal area of the town suggested.
 	The residents cited the unavailability of land for housing colonies as one of the reasons for encroachments in the town.
 	“If the land is got vacated, the proposed Fatehgarh residential colony could be established,” they suggested.
 	Meanwhile, orchard owners whose land in the Kareva is with Army for last two decades have reiterated their demand for vacation of their property besides compensation.
 	According to the orchard owners, land measuring 991 kanals and 19 marlas at Khirman Donipawa, 273 Kanals at Qasba Baghat and 690 Kanals at Fatehgarh is with Army’s Rashtriya Rifles (RR) since 1994 and they have not been compensated or given any rent till date “though we have suffered massive losses due to non-utilization of this land.”
 	The affected land owners said that the district administration has recommended their case for compensation/rent to the Defense Estate Officer, Kashmir, way back in 2011 “but so far nothing has been done in this regard by the latter. Till date we have not received even a single penny.”
 	They said that by taking over their land, the growers have been denied the source of income.
 	“We fail to understand why the government is not shifting the army unit concerned to some other place so that the land is got vacated and released in our favor,” they said.
 	When contacted, PRO Defense asked this reporter to mail any queries regarding land acquisition to Northern Command media cell. However, a week on, there has been no response on query regarding handing over 454 kanals of land to University authorities as well as orchard land to its owners.

BJP MLAS THRASH ER. RASHID FOR HOSTING BEEF PARTY

In backdrop of the beef controversy, on October 08, morning, minutes before the House was to begin proceedings, a group of BJP MLAs led by Ravinder Raina pounced on independent MLA Er. Rashid, dragged him towards the Opposition benches and started beating him. Rashid was rescued by National Conference (NC) members even as Nirmal Singh came in between the MLA and his party’s legislators.
The attack was in response to a beef party by MLA Rashid at government run MLA hostel at Srinagar. 

OFFICIALLY STATED
· 
· MOST OF THE JAILS IN JAMMU AND KASHMIR OVERCROWDED
Oct 05: Most of the jails in Jammu and Kashmir are overcrowded, so the state government was taking steps, including construction of new central jail here, to address the issue.
The total number of jails in the state at present is 14, out of which nine have the inmate position on the higher side, Minister In-charge Home said in a written reply to a question raised by National Conference (NC) MLC Bashir Ahmad Veeri.
Compared to the total capacity of 3011 in these 14 prisons, 2406 prisoners are in jails. However, some of the prisons have the inmate position much above their original capacity, the reply said.
Though the central jails at Jammu and Srinagar have the capacity of 920 and 360 respectively, the number of prisoners lodged, as on September 30 this year, is on the lower side at 311 and 329 respectively.
However, most of the district jails are overcrowded with District Jail in south Kashmir s Anantnag having more than double the occupancy at 158 compared to the capacity of 60.
Similarly, district jail Jammu has the capacity of 450, while its occupancy is 522, and Baramulla jail 158 against 120, the official data suggests.
The government said it is taking steps to address the issue of overcrowding in the jails.
The Prisons Department has identified 200 kanals of land belonging to Agriculture Department at Zawoora Zewan for the construction of new Central Jail Srinagar, the government said.
It, however, said the records of the Prison Headquarters relating to the subject were washed away in the floods last year.
In view of this, the department has again requested the Divisional Commissioner Kashmir to furnish the relevant records for processing the case further, the minister incharge Home said.
He also said the major construction work of the new district jail in Pulwama has been completed except minor renovation works of some structure which could not be taken up due to occupation of the premises by an army unit earlier.
He said DGP has been advised to effect necessary deployment of a company of either CRPF or SSB for the security of the jail so that it is operationalised and the issue of overcrowding of inmates in other jails is addressed.
· 28 CIVILIANS KILLED IN BORDER FIRING SINCE 2014: GOVT 
 ONE BOY LOST EYESIGHT TO PELLET GUNS 
Oct 5: The government informed the Legislative Assembly that 28 civilians have been killed in cross border firing in the State in last two years.
In a written reply to a question by National Conference legislator Mian Altaf Ahmad, Chief Minister Mufti Mohammad Sayeed said: “14 civilians were killed in cross-border firing in 2014 and 14 more this year.”
He added that 61 civilians were injured this year as against 101 last year.
Mufti said six security men have died and 14 injured this year in the cross-border firing. “4 security men were killed and 16 injured in cross-border firing last year”.
The CM informed the House that 49 people died of militancy violence in the State till September 22 this year. 
 “29 security personnel and 20 civilians lost their lives in militancy related violence till September 22 this year,” he said adding 71 security men and 53 civilians were also injured during the same period.
Mufti informed that in 2014, 47 security men and 35 civilians were killed in militancy related incidents in the State. “84 security men and 70 civilians were also injured in the militancy violence last year”.
Sharing details about the compensation paid to militancy victims, he said as per the details furnished by Divisional Commissioner Jammu and Divisional Commissioner Kashmir, ex gratia of Rs 34.43 lakhs and 19.32 lakh respectively were paid to the Next of Kins (NoKs) of deceased and injured persons. 
“The remaining cases are under process at various stages,” he added.
The CM also informed the House that only three persons sustained pellet injuries this year.
In a written reply to the question tabled by NC legislator from Habba-kadal Constituency Shamima Firdous, Mufti  said as per reports furnished by the police headquarters, one boy has sustained pellet injury in police action in May in Palhalan, resulting in impaired eye sight for which he is undergoing treatment.
He further said two persons have reportedly sustained injuries due to Pump Action Gun fire while police was handling an ‘irate mob’ at Kakapora Pulwama on August 7. 
“One of the injured persons has reportedly sustained injuries in his eyes and lost eyesight and he is undergoing treatment,” Mufti said.
· ONLY 2 PROTESTERS LOST EYESIGHT DUE TO PELLET AMMUNITION: GOVT
Oct 05: The government said only two persons have lost their eyesight due the pellet ammunition fired by the police during street protests. In reply to a question by MLA Habba Kadal Shamima Firdous, Home department said a boy was hit in the eyes in May this year. He is undergoing treatment, it said. Also, two persons sustained injuries due to the use of Pump Action Gun fire by police at Kakapora in August. One of them lost his eyesight.
· POLICE RESPONSIBLE FOR DRUG MENACE IN KASHMIR: LAL SINGH
October 06: During his Zero hour speech in the ongoing assembly session, Health Minister Lal Singh said that it was not unemployment, but the J&K police which was responsible for increasing drug abuse in Kashmir.
“Nobody will talk about how the police is actually responsible for the drug menace. If there is a weak SHO, things are bound to regress. Drugs are not spread by unemployment. What has unemployment to do with a teenager student who consumes drugs?” Singh said, while responding to suggestions of members on how to curb the drug menace in state.
Saying that the police needs to focus on arresting ‘the source’ providing drugs, not addicts, he posited the issue of corruption within the force by asking, “Do you know the rate for an SHO who is posted at Lakhanpur?”
· ‘3000 MORE JOBS APPROVED FOR KASHMIRI MIGRANTS’
Oct 06: Minister for Relief and Rehabilitation, Syed Basharat Bukhari Tuesday said Union Ministry of Home Affairs has conveyed in principle approval to provide additional 3000 State Government jobs to Kashmiri Migrants with financial assistance from the Union Government and to construct 6000 transit accommodations in Kashmir Valley for migrants whom State Government jobs have been/will be provided, adding that formal approval from the Union Government is awaited.
The Minister said this while replying to a question by Surinder Mohan Ambardar in the Legislative Council today.  The Minister said that to facilitate return and rehabilitation of Kashmiri Migrants in Kashmir Valley Union and the State Government sanctioned a package of Rs 1618.40 crore in 2008-09. He informed the House that under the package 1963 migrant unemployed youth have been appointed for serving in different departments in Kashmir valley.
The Minister said under transit accommodation component of the package, 505 units of transit accommodation have been constructed out of which 469 units have been allotted to employees appointed under PM’s Package.
The Minister informed the House that after detailed interaction with various organizations and also deliberations in Apex Level Advisory Committee meetings chaired by the Chief Minister revised proposal for return and rehabilitation of Kashmiri Migrants after seeking approval of the State Cabinet has been submitted to the Union Government. Firdous Tak raised a supplementary to the main question.
· GOVT WILL PROTECT ART 370, ART 35A AT ALL COSTS: BUKHARI
Oct 06: Minister for Law, Justice & Parliamentary Affairs, Syed Basharat Bukhari asserted that the PDP-BJP coalition government will protect the special status granted to Jammu and Kashmir under Indian Constitution. 
"We are here to safeguard and protect the Article 370 and Article 35A," Bukhari said amid thumping of desks by the treasury benches. 
He told the opposition members that Question Hour is meant for raising issues of public interest in the House. 
“Please stop creating disruptions," the Minister said.
Leading the charge on behalf of the coalition government, Bukhari said rules demand that the House should not hear matters which are sub-judice. 
"Go and read the rules. What are you shouting for? By creating this melee, you are only wasting the precious time of this House," he said. 
Regretting the constant disruptions, Bukhari said the opposition is not serious in speaking on issues of public interest. 
"They only want to disrupt the house. It is not necessary to adjourn the Question Hour. Article 35A is sub-judice and there are rules which must be followed," he said.
Earlier, the opposition members including Mohammad Akbar Lone, Devendra Singh Rana, Ali Mohammad Sagar, Mohammad Usman Majeed, GM Saroori and Engineer Rashid stormed the well of the House and shouted at the Speaker.
"Please sit down," Speaker Kavinder Gupta told the Opposition members, who refused to calm down, "The House will give you time for raising your issues."
· ABOUT 500 SPOS RECRUITED IN JK THIS YEAR
Oct 07: The government has engaged about 500 youth as special police officers (SPOs) since March this year.
As per the statistics revealed by the government as many as 498 SPOs were recruited by the Police department. “In Srinagar 139 youth were engaged as SPOs followed by the district Anantag in which 121 were recruited,” chief minister Mufti Mohammad Sayeed said in a written reply to a question raised by the independent MLA from Langate, Er Abdul Rashid.
Further, the CM said, in Baramulla 38 youth were engaged while as 22 youth from Budgam district were engaged in the department.
“Further, from Kupwara,12, Handwara,10, Ganderbal, 7, Kulgam, 5, Sopore,4 , Bandipora, 3, Shopain,3 wnd rest were recruited from Pulwama,” he added.
“Two persons were recruited from Police district, Awantipora,” the reply said
The number of personnel from Jammu province engaged in the department is 31 followed by Rajouri which has 15. “Kathua and Poonch have 9, Reasi – 7, Kishtwar – 6, Doda – 6, Samba – 3 and Ramban has only one.”
It also said that 22 SPOs have been engaged in Railway Police, 10 in Armed, 4 in CID, one each in Traffic, Crime Branch J&K, Police Training Centre Manigam and Police Control Room (PCR) Jammu.
The Director SSG, J&K has 9, it added.
· GOVT DENIES OVER 10000 LOC TRAVEL PERMITS
Oct 7: The government has denied LoC permit to over 10000 applicants from two parts of Jammu and Kashmir after they were not recommended by Criminal Investigation Department (CID).
This was revealed by state government in a written reply to legislator, Aijaz Ahmad Mir’s query in this regard. It was also informed that 7157 passport verifications are pending for disposal in the state.
According to the reply, 1179 LoC permit applications of state subjects of Jammu and Kashmir and 2736 permit applications of Pakistan administered Kashmir are pending for verifications.
“Between January and September 17 this year, 135 passport verifications have been sent by CID as Not-Recommended. From the commencement of LoC travel, 5675 state subjects of J&K and 5087 state subjects of PaK have not been recommended for travel via LoC till September 17 this year.”
In the reply, the government asserted that it would be inappropriate to disclose identities of those persons who have not been cleared by CID for travel across LoC.
· 40 PERSONS DIED, OVER 90,000 HOUSES DAMAGED IN SEP 2014 FLOODS: GOVT
Oct 10: Government on said that 40 persons were killed and over 90,000 houses suffered damages during the devastating floods last year.
In a written reply to a query, minster for Relief and Rehabilitation, Syed Basharat Bukhari, said that 5774 pucca houses and 124 kacha houses were fully damaged, 23067 pucca houses and 88 kacha houses were severely damaged, 60879 pucca and 3886 kacha houses were partially damaged and 423 residential sheds were damaged in last year’s flood.
He said that a proper assessment about the damage was done. “Many teams were sent for assessing the damage including the technical persons (JE/AE/ Ex.Eng) on whose report the assessment is done.”
He said that re-verification of the houses is being done which developed cracks after the government assessed the damage. “Relief is accordingly being paid by the concerned deputy commissioners as per re-assessment report and the report of SOP committee,” Bukhari said.
As far as the permanent restoration of the public property is concerned, the minister said “a plan has been formulated by the line department and submitted to government for funding as permanent restoration is not covered under SDRF norms.”
“Temporary restoration works have already been executed.”
· ‘60 KASHMIRI YOUTH JOINED MILITANCY THIS YEAR’
Oct 12: At least 60 Kashmiri youth have joined militant groups, mainly Hizbul Mujahideen, this year and the trend continues, senior Home Ministry officials said. To curb the trend, security agencies have been asked to closely monitor the social networking sites, the officials said and claimed that nearly 20 such youth, who had shown inclination towards joining the militant groups, were prevented after a thorough counselling by police and security officials. 
Official figure of the Kashmiri youth joining militancy till September this year stands at around 60. “Many parents do not even inform the police if their son is missing from home,” they said. The officials said youth are getting attracted towards militancy by videos and pictures posted by a band of youth led by Burhan Wani, a 20 year-old from Tral, who has become the local face for Hizbul Mujahideen. While claiming that 20 youth in their 20s were prevented from joining militancy, the officials said their messages and comments on the Facebook were monitored as they were developing interest in Hizbul Mujahideen, particularly Burhan, who has been labelled as 'A' category terrorist with a reward of Rs 10 lakh on information leading to his arrest. 
· 3 CIVILIANS KILLED, 41 INJURED DURING PROTESTS IN PDP-BJP RULE
Oct 12: Three civilians were killed and 41 injured during clashes and protests in the seven-month rule of PDP-BJP government in Jammu and Kashmir, the state government disclosed.
 	Contradicting Chief Minister Mufti Muhammad Sayeed’s assertion that no bullet was fired on civilians during his rule, Minister for Hajj and Auqaf Abdur Rehman Veeri said three civilians were killed since March 1st this year when the PDP-BJP government took over reins of the State.
 	Speaking in the Legislative Council, Veeri also claimed that 484 police personnel and 43 paramilitary force personnel were wounded during this time. Giving details about PSA detentions, the Minister said 15 persons were detained under the law since March in connection with protests, separatism and militancy.
 	Of them, he said, two were militants; three each were separatists and stone pelters and seven were Over Ground Workers (OGWs).
 	During this period, he said, 14 PSA detainees were released from jails.
 	After Veeri’s response in the House, NC and Congress lawmakers minced no words in castigating the government for multiple use of Public Safety Act on youth and imprisoning separatist leaders in their homes.
 	“The continuous detention of the youth under PSA is sending a wrong message to the people of Kashmir. Why separatist leaders are being frequently put under house arrest?” they asked.
 	Qaiser Jamsheed Lone accused the government of misleading the House over PSA detentions. “Why is the government hiding facts?” he asked.
 	Even PDP’s Firdous Tak accused police of charging youth with severe offences to prevent their bail.
 	“On Eid-ul-Fitr this year, police arrested several youth in Kishtwar on charges of raising anti-national slogans at the behest of Lashkar-e-Toiba. On one hand they (police) accuse the youth of raising slogans at the behest of militants, but on other they claim that the district is free from militancy,” he said.
 	Responding to opposition’s questions, the Minister said the government would not re-detain those whose detention orders are quashed by the High Court. “There are clear-cut directions from Chief Minister Mufti Muhammad Sayeed to release those whose detention orders are quashed by the High Court,” Veeri informed the House.
 	On “continuous house detention” of separatist leaders, the Minister said: “The government is not in favour of such detentions but sometimes we have to take the step as a precautionary measure.”


	DATE
	TROOPERS
	MILITANTS
	CIVILIANS
	OTHERS

	Oct 01
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Oct 02
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Oct 03
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Oct 04
	-
	2
	-
	-

	Oct 05
	4
	1
	-
	-

	Oct 06
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Oct 07
	1
	-
	-
	-

	Oct 08
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Oct 09
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Oct 10
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Oct 11
	-
	1
	-
	-

	Oct 12
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Oct 13
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Oct 14
	1
	1
	-
	-

	Oct 15
	-
	2
	-
	-

	Oct 16
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Oct 17
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Oct 18
	-
	-
	1
	-

	Oct 19
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Oct 20
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Oct 21
	-
	1
	-
	-

	Oct 22
	-
	2
	-
	-

	Oct 23
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Oct 24
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Oct 25
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Oct 26
	1
	2
	-
	-

	Oct 27
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Oct 28
	1
	-
	-
	-

	Oct 29
	-
	1
	-
	-

	Oct 30
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Oct 31
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Total 
	8
	13
	1
	0

	IN TOTO
	22 KILLINGS 



CHRONOLOGY OF INCIDENTS
Oct 01: No incident of violence reported. 
Oct 02: Clashes broke out in downtown areas particularly outside Jamia Masjid, Nowhatta between young protesters and state police immediately after the congregational Friday prayers. 
Oct 03: No incident of violence reported.
Oct 04: Police claimed to have killed two foreign militant of Jaish-e-Muhammad (JeM) outfit in the encounter in the restive town of Tral in this south Kashmir district. Police identified the militants as Chotta Burmi and Adil Pathan of JeM outfit.
Oct 05: Four army men were killed in an encounter at Hafruda forests in Handwara area of Kupwara district. In another gunfight in the same district one militant was killed in Kursan, Lolab. The slain militant has not been identified.   
Oct 06: No incident of violence reported.
Oct 07: An Assistant Sub Inspector of J&K Police—tasked with tracking down most wanted militants—was killed in a gunfight at Gund-Dachen area of north Kashmir’s Bandipora district after he intercepted a vehicle carrying militants, police said. The slain cop has been identified as ASI Altaf Ahmad alias Laptop. 
Oct 08: Militants attacked an army party in Shopian area of Kashmir, however, no damaged was caused on either side. 
Oct 09: Two Kashmiris were injured while the driver of the Truck escaped unhurt when Hindu right wing activists attacked a Srinagar bound truck at Udhampure in Jammu province. While the shopekeepers at Lal Chowk Srinagar observed a day strike against BJP flag hoisting by some people claiming loyalty with BJP. The flag hoisting trigged anger and youth who were protesting and state forces 
Oct 10: No incident of violence reported.
Oct 11: Army claimed it has killed a LET militant in Wadora Bala, Handwara in an encounter with militants. The slain militant was identified as of LET, however, his name has not been ascertained.   
Oct 12: Valley wide strike was observed against the attack on Kashmiri truckers by Hindi rightwing goons at Udhampur area of Jammu.  
Oct 13: An encounter between militants and government forces started at Dogripora village of Awantipora in South Kashmir’s Pulwama district. Sources said two HM militants were hiding in a residential house in the village.Official sources claimed that after specific information about the presence of militants in the area, a joint team of Army’s 55 RR and SOG cordoned the village, and as the government forces started searching houses, the militants opened fire on them and the forces retaliated. Five civilians were reportedly injured. Some near the encounter site and others near the Jamia Masjid Awantipora. The injured have been identified as Iqra Jan (12) daughter of Mohammad Rafiq Dar resident of Lethpora Awantipora and 17-year-old Owais Ahmad Dar son of Mohammad Yusuf Dar resident of Dogripora, Mushtaq Ahmad, Raheel Ahmad and Parvez Ahmad.
Oct 1 4: A militant and an army man were killed in a gunbattle near the Line of Control (LoC) as army claimed it had foiled an infiltration in Poonch in Jammu and Kashmir. In a separate incident reported from Kupwara district, three army soldiers were injured when suspected militants attacked them with a hand grenade. 
Oct 15: Two Special Police Officers (SPOs), who had deserted the police force last month and joined militancy, were killed in an encounter with army in Doda district. Those killed in the encounter have been identified as Ghulam Nabi Mangnoo alias Maulvi code name Gulla Tailor and Raiz Ahmed, police officials said. While Maulvi had surrendered as the District Commander of Lasker-e-Toiba (LeT) before the police in 2010 and joined as an SPO, Raiz had surrendered as the Hizbul Mujahideen (HM) militant in 2010.
Oct 16: Two persons including a woman were injured in a shootout at a bus stand in Pulwama district. The injured were identified as Reyaz Ahmad Teli and Rehti Begum. After the shootout police claimed it has arrested an OWG identified as Tariq Ahmad, clad in veil, who was allegedly carrying a sharp edged weapon. However, the family of the arrestee claimed that the arrested was a mentally challenged and not a militant OGW.  
Oct 17: No incident of violence reported. 
Oct 18: One of the Kashmir truckers Zahid Ahmad succumbed to his injuries he received in an attack on him by rightwing Hindu goons Udhampure. 
Oct 19: No incident of violence reported. 
Oct 20: Amidst a complete shutdown, fierce clashes continued between government forces and protesting youths in Anantnag and other townships of this southern district for the third running day against the murder Zahid Bhat of Botengoo, who was set ablaze by a Hindu mob in Udhampur district of Jammu on October 9, and later succumbed to his injuries. Government forces also thrashed and detained JKLF chairman Mohammad Yasin Malik and his associates while he was trying to lead a march from Zahid’s native village.
Oct 21: A militant was killed and two army forces personnel were injured in a gunbattle in Baramulla district of Kashmir. In another incident, a youth Nassir Ahmad Dar son of Nisar Ahmad Dar, a resident of Zirpora, Bijbehara was critically injured when state forces used force to suppress the protests in south Kashmir’s Anantnag district. The injured was immediately shifted to Srinagar.
Oct 22: Two HM militants, Burhan Group, were killed in an encounter Manzipora area of Shopian district. The slain militants were identified as Irshad Ahmad Sheikh of Maldaira, Shopian and Adil Khanday of Barbugh, Imam Sahab Shopian. While a civilian and police cop was injured in clashes at Habba Kadal, Srinagar after police foiled a march to Batengo called by Hurriyat (G) to express solidarity with the trucker Zahid Rasool Bhat attacked in Udhampur. 
Oct 23: Several youths were injured in protests that took place in south Kashmir over the killing of Hizb militants. 
Oct 24: Two civilians were injured in Samba sector of Jammu province in cross LOC firing. 
Oct 25: Two villagers were reportedly injured in cross border shelling in Samba district of Jammu and Kashmir. While amid a spontaneous shutdown, protests erupted in Ellahi Bagh after pages of the Quran were strewn on the road in the area allegedly by some vehicle-borne persons. 
Oct 26: Two militants belong to HM’s Burhan Group and an army trooper were killed in an encounter that took place between them in Drubgam village of Pulwama district. The slain militants were identified as Afaqullah Bhat son of Abdul Rashid of Karimabad, Pulwama and Abdul Manan Dar son of Bashir Ahmad of Armbugh, Pulwama. While six civilians were injured as India and Pakistan continued to exchange gunfire and shells along the International border in Jammu and Kashmir. Six villagers belonging to four families were injured due to Pakistan shelling in Bobiya village of Kathua district. They were immediately shifted to hospital by police in bullet proof vehicles.
Oct 27: A shutdown was observed across Kashmir as a mark of protest against the landing of Indian army in Kashmir on 27 October 1947. Apprehending pro-freedom protests, the government had put most of the resistance leadership under house arrest and deployed thousands of paramilitary troopers in the city and other urban areas of the city. Protesters clashed with police and paramilitary troopers in Nowgam, Kakpora, Sumbora, and Pampore and Palhalan and some areas of old Srinagar like Nowshehra, Saraf Kadal. They were chased away by police who fired teargas canisters. In Narbal area, a CRPF trooper was injured during stone pelting, which lasted for nearly two hours. In Palhalan, the local residents said, the situation turned ugly when the forces lobbed teargas canisters inside the compound of the Jamia Masjid. Similar clashes were witnessed in Anantnag and Bijebhara towns.
Oct 28: an encounter started between government forces and militants in the dense forests of Bhutto, Bandipora, resulting in the death of an army man, according to reports. A rifle man of 14 RR had reportedly been killed while the militants managed to escaped, late reports said. While at least seven policemen including a sub inspector were injured after massive protests and clashes broke out in Palhallan village in north Kashmir's Pattan town against the damage caused to the mosque allegedly by state forces.
Oct 29: Army and police claimed the most wanted militant and Lashkar-e-Toiba (LeT) chief Abdul Rehman alias Abu Qasim, was killed in a brief encounter with forces in south Kashmir’s Kulgam district, police said. Police said Qasim, a resident of Bhawalpur, Multan in Pakistan was the Divisional Commander of LeT and had been active in Kashmir for the last five years.
Oct 30: CRPF run amok in Kulgam town and damaged several vehicles and houses which triggered protest in the area. 
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)Oct 31: Seven people were injured when unknown persons hurled a hand grenade towards an army vehicle in Accabal bus stand in Anantnag. 
